Autodesk<sup>®</sup> PowerShape<sup>®</sup>

# **PowerShape** Administration Guide

AUTODESK

## Contents

## Managing PowerShape

Understanding the powershape.con file	3
Creating a customized powershape.con file	3
Users	4
What is a user?	4
What are security levels?	5
Setting up users	5
What is the login macro?	6
Logging in as another user	7
Changing user passwords	7
Managing users	8
Colour schemes	9
Colour table	9
Colours used in PowerShape	12
Setting up printers and plotters	20
Managing your data	21
Naming your models	21
Search patterns	23
Setting up model database areas	23
Access rights	26
Backing up your data	27
Installation details	31
Trouble-shooting	32
Model recovery	35
Error conditions	36
Solving typical problems	39
Commands	46
Access rights commands	46
Model database areas commands	49
Users commands	50

## **Autodesk Legal Notice**

**53** 

2

# **Managing PowerShape**

This user guide provides information on managing PowerShape, including:

- Configuring your system (see page 3).
- Setting up users (see page 4).
- Managing your data (see page 21).
- Solving common problems (see page 32).

## Understanding the powershape.con file

The *powershape.con* file contains information about the configuration of your software. Optionally, you can create another file and customize the details.



The following assumes that C:\Program files\Autodesk\ is the default installation folder of the software.

The default *powershape.con* file is read from:

C:\Program files\Autodesk\PowerShapexxxx\sys\misc\

where xxxxx is the version number of PowerShape and C is the disk on which PowerShape is installed.

You can make changes to the default *powershape.con* file, but these changes are overwritten when you install a new version of the software. To retain changes when future versions of the program are installed, create a customized version of the *powershape.con* file (see page 3).

Changes in this file overwrite the defaults in C:\Program files\Autodesk\PowerShapexxxx\sys\misc\, because anything new that is added to the program is included before the customized settings are added.



If the default value is changed in the newly installed version, the user changes overwrite this. We recommend that you check the powershape.con file in the new release for changes.

## Creating a customized powershape.con file

The following assumes that C:\Program files\Autodesk\ is the default installation folder of PowerShape.

To create a customized powershape.con file:

- 1 Navigate to C:\Program files\Autodesk
- 2 If there is no *config* folder, create a folder at the same level as the PowerShape folder called **config**.
- 3 In the config folder, create a new text file called *powershape.con*.
- 4 In *powershape.con* in C:\Program files\Autodesk\PowerShapexxxx\ sys\misc\, identify the string you want to change.

For example, if you add the following to the custom *powershape.con*, the inside colour will be blue instead of red.

inside colour: 0.0, 0.0, 1.0

#### **Monitor sizes**

1:1 zoom is supported on widescreen monitors, but you can use powershape.con settings to specify an unusual size.

#### Model sizes

PowerShape supports model sizes over 2GB by default. This is controlled by the large\_sector\_size command in the powershape.con file:

```
large_sector_size: true
```

This resource takes effect on new models. Alternatively, use **Save As** to save older models with a new name. Models with larger sector sizes can be opened by with older versions of PowerShape.

## **Users**

### What is a user?

The software keeps a list of users; people who are set up to use PowerShape.

Each user is allocated a security level that gives them privileges associated with one of the roles below:



PowerShape restricts access to functionality by security level. For example, only a System Administrator or Drawing Office Manager can delete a database area.

The System Administrator is responsible for controlling the security and access rights of PowerShape users.

The following information is specified for each user:

- Short login name (often their initials or first name).
- User's full name.
- Password (optional).
- Security level.

 Pathname of a macro, which runs when the user logs on. This macro can set personal preferences, such as those available using the **Options** dialogs.

PowerShape can also:

- restrict a user from accessing specified models.
- store the models created by a user in a specified area on the network.

For further details, see Managing your data (see page 21).

## What are security levels?

Security levels, as shown below, are assigned to each user. They control which administrative tasks a user can perform.

Level	Description
0	Used by Autodesk system support staff.
1	Allows access to all system administration and design functions. This level is assigned to the System Administrator.
2	Allows access to most system administration and all design functions. This level is usually assigned to the design office manager.
3	Allows access to design functions, but no access to administration functions. This level is assigned to the designers.

### Setting up users

The first tasks your System Administrator must perform are to:

- identify who needs to access PowerShape.
- specify a naming-convention for models.
- establish the access rights that individuals and groups of users need for individual projects.

For further details, see Managing your data (see page 21).

When you run PowerShape for the first time, a new user is created for you using your Windows login name (with security level 3). Although you can set yourself up as a user by running PowerShape, you must have administrative privileges to set up other users.

To set up a new user:

1 Run PowerShape.

- 2 Double-click the Command box in the status bar to open the Command window.
- 3 In the Command window, type:

admin create user

- 4 Enter the login name of the user. This is usually the same as the user's system login name.
- 5 Enter a user password. Alternatively, if no password is required, type:

none



Windows and PowerShape passwords need not be the same. If you specify a PowerShape password, the user is prompted for it each time they start PowerShape.

6 Enter the name of the user in single quotes, for example:

'Francis Dollarhyde'

- 7 Enter the security level of the user.
- 8 Enter the path of the login macro for the user. Alternatively, if no login macro is required, type:

none

and the default login macro (see page 6) is used.

## What is the login macro?

The login macro is one of the macro files that run when you start PowerShape. It customizes the system to meet personal requirements. For example, you can add the required drawing standard to this macro so that PowerShape automatically uses it.

When PowerShape starts, three macros are run in the following order:

- 1 preconfig.mac.
- **2** user's login macro or login.mac (the default login macro).
- 3 postconfig.mac.

The following path is searched for the macros:

C:\Program Files\Autodesk\PowerShapexxxx\lib\macro

The path you specified when the user was set up is searched for the user's login macro.

You can add commands to the default login macro, *login.mac*. When you create a user, if a path is given for the login macro and no file exists in the specified folder, the default login macro file is copied to the location. The user can then modify this file.

Use *preconfig.mac* and *postconfig.mac* to store organization-wide PowerShape commands. *postconfig.mac* gives you some control over the settings in the user's login.mac.

## Logging in as another user

There is not necessarily a direct relationship between a Windows user and a PowerShape user. For example, you can log into Windows as user *ano*, and log into PowerShape as user *abc*. It is typical to have a PowerShape user set up for administration tasks (often called *admin*) so it is often convenient to swap between user and *admin* logins.

To log in as another user:

1 In the Command box, type login.

A warning message is displayed if any open models have unsaved changes. Click **No** to cancel the login command and save your changes, or click **Yes** to continue.

- 2 Use the Login dialog to enter the user's Login name and Password.
- 3 Click OK.

The security rights change to those of the new user.

If the user is unknown to PowerShape, you can try again. If after six retries the login attempt has still not succeeded, the command is automatically aborted by PowerShape.

To add a user to the list of known users, see Setting up users (see page 5).

## Changing user passwords

To change your password:

- 1 Double-click the Command box in the status bar to open the Command window.
- 2 In the Command window, type:

admin edit user

- **3** Type: password
- 4 Type your new password.

You may only change the password of users with a lower security level than your own.

To change another user's password:

- 1 Double-click the Command box in the status bar to open the Command window.
- 2 In the Command window, type:

admin edit user

- **3** Type the user name of the user.
- 4 Type password
- **5** Type the user's new password.

## Managing users

To display a list of existing users:

- 1 Double-click the Command box in the status bar to open the Command window.
- 2 In the Command window, type:

#### admin state user

This lists all the users and their login details.

#### To remove a user:

- 1 Double-click the Command box in the status bar to open the Command window.
- 2 In the Command window, type:

#### admin delete user

**3** Type the username and password of the user you want to remove.

## **Colour schemes**

In PowerShape, you can edit the colours of the graphics using the Home tab > Style panel, or by selecting File > Options > Customize Colours to display the **View Appearance** dialog (for more information, see the Getting Started guide).

You can also specify your own colour scheme for graphics using two files; the colour table file, which stores the colour definitions, and the colour scheme file, which uses the colour definitions to create the colour scheme. You can edit both these files.

To specify a colour scheme for PowerShape, use information from the following sections:

Table of colour definitions (see page 9)

Colours used in PowerShape (see page 12)

## **Colour table**

Given below is the colour table file provided with PowerShape. This contains the colour definitions.

```
46
Black 0 0 0
White 1 1 1
Red 1 0 0
Green 0 1 0
Blue 0 0 1
Yellow 1 1 0
Cyan 0 1 1
Magenta 1 0 1
Orange 1.0 0.6 0.1
GreenYellow 0.6 0.83 0.0
BlueCyan 0.0 0.5 1.0
Black 0.0 0.0 0.0
GreenCyan 0.0 1.0 0.6
BlueMagenta 0.55 0.0 1.0
RedMagenta 1.0 0.0 0.55
FireBrick 0.75 0.13 0.13
Moccasin 1 0.89 0.71
```

Orchid 0.85 0.24 0.88 Violet 0.73 0.21 0.93 Tan 0.82 0.71 0.55 Navy 0 0 0.5 OldLace 0.99 0.96 0.90 Chocolate 0.82 0.41 0.12 Charteuse 0.5 1 0 Azure 0.94 1 1 MidGreen 0.2 0.8 0.3 PaleGrey 0.8 0.8 0.8 LightGrey 0.6 0.6 0.6 MidBlueGrev 0.33 0.33 0.45 DarkBlueGrev 0.34 0.34 0.5 MidGrey .5 .5 .5 DarkGrey 0.4 0.4 0.4 DarkSlate 0.28 0.35 0.55 DarkOrange 1 0.3 0.0 Yellowish 1.0 1.0 0.5 RedOrange 0.8 0.4 0.0 Pink 1.0 0.6 0.6 Maroon 0.6 0.0 0.4 Mauve 0.7 0.55 0.8 BottleGreen 0 0.75 0 Claret 0.8 0.0 0.7 Amber 0.8 0.5 0.0 BrightPink 1.0 0.7 0.7 DarkMagenta 1 0 0.75 ElectricBlue 0 .9 .9 Peppermint .5 1 .5

The number on the first line represents the number of colour definitions in the table.

The remaining lines each contain a colour definition. Each colour definition is defined as colour code name followed by its RGB colour mix.

PowerShape provides you with a variety of colour definitions, but it is possible to add your own colour definitions (see page 11).

### Changing the colour definitions in the colour table file

To add or change colour definitions:

1 Create a copy of the *colour.tab* file in your home area. By default, the file is located in:

 $C:\Program Files\Autodesk\PowerShapexxxx\sys\hci\colourscheme$ 

where xxxxx is the version number of PowerShape and C is the disk on which PowerShape is installed.

- 2 Open the copy of *colour.tab* in a text editor.
- 3 Change the colours.

For example, to add a new colour definition:

- 1 Create a new line at the end of the file.
- 2 Add a unique code name for the colour.
- **3** Add the RGB mix for the colour. For example:

RedOrange 0.8 0.4 0.0

- 4 Edit the number on the first line of the file to match the new total number of colour definitions.
- 5 Add an empty line at the end of the file.

To edit a colour definition:

- 6 Locate the colour definition you want to edit.
- 7 Edit the RGB mix values to change the colour.
- 4 Save the file.

To use your edited copy of the *colour.tab* file, set the environment variable DCAM\_COLOUR\_TABLE to the path of your file. To do this:

1 From the Windows Start menu, select Control Panel > Systems > Change settings, or right-click the Windows button and select System.

The System Properties dialog is displayed.

- 2 On the Advanced tab, click Environment variables.
- 3 Click New to create a New User Variable.
- 4 In the Variable name text box, type:

DCAM\_COLOUR\_TABLE

5 In the **Variable value** text box, enter the pathname to your copy of the *colour.tab* file. For example:

c:\mypsfiles\colour.tab

6 Click **OK** to accept the changes and close the dialogs and window.



Log out and into the system again for these changes to be effective.

## **Colours used in PowerShape**

Given below are the contents of the file of colour definitions used by PowerShape:

**# Colour table** 

# this supplies the colours displayed with

# the colour selector and used to show each

# line, etc displayed within the software.

#

# The last five colours are used for

*#* instrumentation.

#

**#** Note use of backslash is required.

#

# A colour entry like Red can also be

**# replaced with its rgb entry e.g.** 

```
# 100
```

# or

**# 1.0 0.0 0.0** 

```
colour_table: \
16 \
Black \
White \
Red \
Green \
Blue \
ElectricBlue \
DarkMagenta \
```

Yellowish \ Amber \ BottleGreen \ Peppermint \ Yellow \ BlueCyan \ DarkOrange \ BrightPink \ MidGrey

# Now resources covering view background # colour, etc graduated: on top\_colour: 0.0 0.0 0.0 bottom\_colour: 0.2 0.4 0.8

# Colour to use when rubber-banding to create # new lines, etc Get some slight blues and # reds with this colour but rubber-banding is # at least always visible xor\_colour: 1.0 1.0 1.0

#### #

# Colours for dynamic editing of drafting
# text
text\_cursor\_colour: Pink
text\_box\_colour: Green
text\_box\_highlight\_colour: Cyan
#
# Colours for the rotation tracker
# These are the colours of the lines and
# text of the rotation tracker controlled
# under tools -> options -> views ->

Autodesk PowerShape

```
# rotation tracker
#
  Resources control line and text colours
#
#
  when displaying the world axes or a
#
  workplane axes system.
#
  Resources also control the position of
#
# the axes also which defaults to
# bottom_left, but can be one of right,
# left, top, bottom top_right, top_left,
# bottom right, and bottom left.
#
#
  The attenuation resource controls how
#
  much colours of line and text are reduced
# when an axes points away from the viewer.
#
rotation_tracker_line_colour: 0.4 0.95 1.0
rotation tracker text colour: 0.4 0.95 1.0
rotation_tracker_active_colour: 1.0 1.0 1.0
rotation_tracker_workplane_line_colour: 0.4 0.95 1.0
rotation_tracker_workplane_text_colour: 0.4 0.95 1.0
rotation_tracker_pos_type: bottom_left
rotation_tracker_colour_attenuation: 0.7
```

We will now explain the contents of this file. Any line beginning with # is a comment. At the start of the file is a group of comments. The colour table defines 16 colours used in PowerShape:

```
colour_table: \
16 \
Black \
White \
Red \
Green \
```

Blue \ ElectricBlue \ DarkMagenta \ Yellowish \ Amber \ BottleGreen \ Peppermint \ Yellow \ BlueCyan \ DarkOrange \ BrightPink \

**MidGrey** 

Each line of the colour table must end with \ except the last entry. The first line states that the colour table is being defined. On the second line of the table is a number. This number is the number of colours used in PowerShape and it must not change. The remaining lines each contain a colour code name that is defined in the colour table file called colour.tab. You can also define the colour as a RGB colour mix.

All of the colours are available in the **Main** and **Style** toolbars. You can use them to change the colour of objects.

Note that PowerShape uses the first 2 and the last 5 colours for specific purposes (see the table below).

Colour number	Colour in default file	What this colour shows in PowerShape
Colour 1	Black	Window background.
Colour 2	White	Default foreground colour for objects.
Colour 12	Yellow	Selected objects.
Colour 13	BlueCyan	Edit handles. Outside detail of the bright tracker ball.

Colour 14	DarkOrange	An object that can be selected when the intelligent cursor passes over.	
		Selected surface curves.	
		Surface normals.	
		Inside detail of the bright tracker ball.	
Colour 15	BrightPink	Secondary selections. Outside detail of the dull tracker ball.	
Colour 16	MidGrey	A locked object. Detailed surface. Inside detail of the dull tracker ball.	

If you change Colours 12 and 16, make sure Colour 12 is a bright colour and Colour 16 a shade of grey.

The next part of the file defines the background colour of view.

**# Now resources covering view background** 

# colour, etc

graduated: on

top\_colour: 0.0 0.0 0.0

bottom\_colour: 0.2 0.4 0.8

It contains three variables: graduated, top\_colour and bottom\_colour. The variable graduated can be on or off. If it is off, the background colour is defined using the first colour of the colour table. If on, the views in PowerShape have a graduated background using the colours defined by the top\_colour and bottom\_colour variables.

The code below defines the colour of the rubber banding.

# Colour to use when rubber-banding to create

# new lines, etc Get some slight blues and

**# reds with this colour but rubber-banding is** 

# at least always visible

xor\_colour: 1.0 1.0 1.0

Similarly, the code below defines the colours used to dynamically edit text in the drafting module.

**#** Colours for dynamic editing of drafting

# text

text\_cursor\_colour: Pink

text box colour: Green text\_box\_highlight\_colour: Cyan The code below defines the colour of the rotation tracker. # Colours for the rotation tracker **#** These are the colours of the lines and # text of the rotation tracker controlled # under tools -> options -> views -> # rotation tracker # **Resources control line and text colours** # # when displaying the world axes or a # workplane axes system. # **#** Resources also control the position of # the axes also which defaults to **#** bottom left, but can be one of right, # left, top, bottom top\_right, top\_left, bottom right, and bottom left. # # # The attenuation resource controls how much colours of line and text are reduced # when an axes points away from the viewer. # # rotation\_tracker\_line\_colour: 0.4 0.95 1.0 rotation\_tracker\_text\_colour: 0.4 0.95 1.0 rotation\_tracker\_active\_colour: 1.0 1.0 1.0 rotation\_tracker\_workplane\_line\_colour: 0.4 0.95 1.0 rotation\_tracker\_workplane\_text\_colour: 0.4 0.95 1.0 rotation\_tracker\_pos\_type: bottom\_left rotation\_tracker\_colour\_attenuation: 0.7

## Changing the colours used by PowerShape

To change the default colours used by PowerShape:

1 Create a copy of the *default.scm* file to your home area. This file can be found at:

 $C:\ProgramFiles\Autodesk\PowerShapexxxx\sys\hci\colourscheme\default\.scm$ 

where xxxxx is the version number of PowerShape and C is the disk on which PowerShape is installed.

- 2 Open your copy of the *default.scm* file in a text editor.
- 3 In this file, change the colours to your requirements by changing the code names of the colours.

All code names must exist in the colour table file (see page 9) (colour.tab) used by PowerShape.

Make sure only 16 colours are used.

- 4 Add an empty line at the end of the file.
- 5 Save the file with a new name.

To use the colour scheme in your copy of the *default.scm* file, do one of the following:

Put the file in the folder:

 $C:\Program Files\Autodesk\PowerShapexxxx\sys\hci\colourscheme$ 

You can then select this file from the **Colour scheme** drop-down list, on the **Properties** page of the **Options** dialog.

 Set the environment variable DCAM\_COLOUR\_SCHEME (see page 18) to the path of your file.



If you want to add your file to our set, send us your file.

# Setting the DCAM\_COLOUR\_SCHEME environment variable

To set the DCAM\_COLOUR\_SCHEME environment variable:

- On the Windows desktop, click Start > Control Panel > Systems. The Systems window of the Control Panel is displayed.
- 2 Click Change settings. The System Properties dialog is displayed.
- 3 On the Advanced tab, click Environment variables.
- 4 Click New to create a New User Variable.

5 In the Variable name text box, type:

DCAM\_COLOUR\_SCHEME

6 In the **Variable value** text box, enter the pathname to your copy of the *default.scm* file. For example:

c:\mypsfiles\default.scm

7 Click **OK** to accept the changes and close the dialogs and window.

Log out and into the system again for these changes to be effective.

## **Setting up printers and plotters**

Printers and plotters are handled by drivers supplied by their manufacturers. You must have the correct driver installed for the printer or plotter to work correctly.

To set up a printer or plotter:

1 In Windows click Start > Devices and Printers, or click the Windows button and select Settings > Devices.

The **Devices and Printers** window of the **Control Panel** is displayed.

- 2 Click Add a printer to display the Add Printer Wizard.
- **3** Use the Wizard to install your driver.

When you have set up your printers and plotters in your operating system, they are automatically available in PowerShape.

Your installation of PowerShape should automatically use the printer that is attached to your system. However, if necessary, you can change the default settings of the printer that you use with PowerShape as follows:

- 1 Start PowerShape.
- 2 Select File > Print > Print Set-up to display the Page Setup dialog.
- 3 On the dialog, click the **Printer** button to display the **Print Setup** dialog.
- 4 Select a different printer, if necessary, using the **Name** drop-down list.
- 5 Use this dialog to change basic properties of the selected printer, such as **Paper Size**.
- 6 For further options, click the **Properties** button to display the **Document Properties** dialog to change the settings.
- 7 Click **OK** to accept the changes and close the dialog.

## Managing your data

## Naming your models

It is recommended that you set up a naming scheme on your system so that models can be found by user, department, or customer project.

To specify a naming scheme for models:

1 List the items to include in the name.

For example, you could include the following items in your model name:

- the part represented by the model
- the revision number of the geometry
- who produced the model
- the customer for whom the model is created
- the project in which the model is developed
- 2 Code the items.

If you have many items to include in your name, consider using codes to identify the items.

For our example, you could use:

- the part number to show the part represented by the model
- a number to show the revision number of the geometry
- the initials of the person who produced the model
- the name of the customer for whom the model is created
- the number of the project in which the model is developed
- 3 Order the items.
  - Fix the order in which the items appear in the name.
  - Position the unique part number, or the project number, at the beginning. This groups together all the models connected with that part or project in the model name lists.
- **4** Use separators between the items in the name.

If the coded items have a fixed number of characters, they do not need separators. However, we recommend using periods or other character as separators because they make the names easier to read.

In our example, the model name:

#### 531.2.2500.perkins.rpg

indicates the following:

531 -	This model is associated to a part with the unique part number 531.
2 -	This is the <i>second</i> revision of this model.
2500 -	This model was developed within project number 2500.
Perkins -	This model was designed for the customer <i>Perkins.</i>
rpg -	This model was produced by a user whose initials are <i>rpg</i> .

5 Inform all users of the naming scheme.

Everyone must use the naming scheme for it to be successful.

It is important to understand the distinction between a *part* and a *model*:

- A *part* is a physical component that can be purchased or manufactured.
- A *model* is a computer-generated representation built by PowerShape to describe aspects of the part.

Although the part can be represented by one model, it is usually represented by several models. Some of the reasons for this are:

- The inside and outside geometry is created as separate models.
- Several sub-components are individually modelled.
- Models can contain drawings and the drawings are stored as individual models.
- It is important to name your models so that you know which *part* they represent.

## **Search patterns**

If your model naming convention uses period separators between each component of the name, you can conduct sophisticated searches to find model names using patterns.

You can also use patterns to decide which models are stored where. For example, all model names matching the pattern \*.*abc* are saved in a specific database area. This may result in you having a model name that matches multiple patterns. Where a string of characters matches more than one pattern, the match is determined by the most closely matching pattern.

For example, *top.124* matches both the following patterns:

- \*1\*
- \*.124

Since *top.124* matches more characters in \*.124, that is the deciding pattern.

## Setting up model database areas

When using the **Store in database** option, which can be set on the **Save Model As** dialog, models are placed in a general model database area by default. It is possible to set up new model database areas, where models belonging to a specific user or project can be stored. This avoids the issue of running out of disk space when sharing a central storage area. PowerShape can then place models with names matching specific patterns into these database areas.

Alternatively, users can store data locally on individual workstations. This speeds up PowerShape and reduces network traffic.

For further information, see:

- Setting up a database area for each user (see page 24)
- Setting up a database area for projects (see page 25)
- Moving a model from one database area to another (see page 26)

### Setting up a database area for each user

It is useful to set up model databases for each user. This requires the model-naming convention includes the designer's initials such as **model.abc**, where **model** is the model name and **abc** is the user's initials. Create a folder on each user's hard disk and give it a suitable name. This folder is the database area and holds the user's models.

For example, assume you create a user called *abc* whose workstation is called *ws1*. You can create a folder called *parts* in the shared disk *local1* and tell PowerShape to store all models with names defined by the pattern \**.abc* in the folder \\ws1\local1\parts. To do this:

- 1 Log on to PowerShape as a user with administrative privileges (for example, *admin*).
- 2 Double-click the Command box in the status bar to open the Command window.
- **3** In the Command window, type:

admin create dbarea

4 Type in the pattern of the model name you want to store in a particular area. Include the pattern in single quotes ('), for example:

'\*.abc'

5 Type the path, again in single quotes, of where the models are to be stored. For example:

'\\ws1\local1\parts\'



Note the \ at the end of the path.

All models with names ending .abc are put in \\ws1\local1\parts.



Make sure paths are of the form:

\\machine\folder\parts

and not of the form:

k:\parts

### Setting up a database area for projects

Many organizations manage their design work as a set of projects. For example, a project may be a custom design for a specific customer, or an internal project to update an existing model. When you start a project, it is often useful to create a folder on the network. All models for this project can then be stored in this folder. The commands to set up a project are the same as those described in Setting up a database area for each user (see page 24) except the naming pattern uses the project name:

- 1 Create a folder in a suitable location. Use a meaningful name, which allows you to find the project. This holds the project's models.
- 2 Log on to PowerShape as a user with administrative privileges (for example, *admin*).
- **3** Double-click the Command box in the status bar to open the Command window.
- 4 In the Command window, type:

#### admin create dbarea

5 Type the pattern of the project name you want to store in a particular area. Make sure you put the pattern in single quotes ('), for example:

'\*.proj1.\*'

6 Type the path, again in single quotes, of where the models are to be stored. For example:

'\\ws1\local1\project1\'

LÌ 🚺

Note the \ at the end of the path.

All models with names matching **\*.proj1.\*** are saved in \\ws1\local1\project1.



Make sure paths are of the form:

\\machine\folder\project

and not of the form:

k:\project

### Moving a model from one database area to another

When a project or model is completed, it may be necessary to move models to different database areas.

To move a model from one database area to another:

- 1 Click File > Save As. The **Save As** dialog is displayed.
- 2 Rename the model file to match the name pattern of the new database area.

Alternatively, rename the file with no naming pattern, to move it to a central location.

When a project is complete, you can save associated model files to a storage device and remove them from disk.

## Access rights

Access rights control the operations that a user or a group of users can use on a model or group of models.

For example, you might want to allow all users full access only to the models they create, but read-only access to models created by other users. For a combination of user and model, the access rights that can be granted are:

- create
- delete
- read
- write

You can restrict how users can access the database areas by forcing them to create model names that end with their initials:

- 1 Log on to PowerShape as a user with administrative privileges (for example, *admin*).
- 2 Double-click the Command box in the status bar to open the Command window.
- 3 In the Command window, type:

#### admin create access

4 Type the pattern of model names that the user can operate on, in single quotes. For example:

'\*.abc'

**5** Type the initials of the user in single quotes. For example:

#### 'abc'

You can type this string as a pattern so it can match more than one user. If the user's initials match more than one pattern, the access rights are determined by the most closely matching pattern.

- 6 Type the user's access rights to the models. You can choose from:
  - create
  - delete
  - read
  - write
  - none

An example of this command is:

admin create access '\*' 'abc' read

#### admin create access '\*.abc' 'abc' create delete read write

User **abc** can read everyone else's models, but can only create, delete, read and write to models ending with the name **.abc**.

## Backing up your data

We recommend that you protect your data and models by making daily backups of your databases. This involves copying the shared database, and all locally stored parts, models and drawings to a storage device, or using backup software. Then, if data is damaged, a recent copy can be retrieved.

PowerShape automatically checks for damage to models using the **File Doctor** during **Save** and **Save As** processes (see page 29). You can protect your work further by using the backup facilities available in PowerShape:

#### Backup when updating a model

When you create a new version of a model, a backup model called *Modelname\_vN.psmodel\_backup* is created by default, where *N* is the model version number of the model before it was updated. The backup is stored in the *Temp* folder, but you can set an alternative location for the backup folder using the *update\_backup\_path* setting in the *powershape.con* file.

You can disable this backup facility using one of the following:

In the powershape.con file, use the setting:

#### update\_backup

In the *login* macro, use:

#### File OnUpdate Backup Off

The backup model does not appear in the shareddb, and can be deleted when no longer required.

#### Backup when opening a model

When a model is opened, PowerShape can automatically create a backup model called *Modelname\_safe.psmodel*. The backup model is stored in the *Temp* folder.

To enable this backup facility, use one of the following methods:

In the powershape.con file, use the setting:

open\_backup

In the login macro, use:

File OnOpen Backup On

To revert to the backup model:

- 1 Close the current model in PowerShape.
- 2 Select the model in Windows explorer and delete it.
- 3 Copy the safe model from the temp folder into the same folder as the updated model.
- 4 Rename the backup model to the name of the model deleted.
- **5** Open the model in PowerShape.

#### Manually using the File Doctor

If File Doctor is run in **Advanced Mode** using the **Check & Fix** option, and errors are found in the model, the following three files can be automatically created:

- Modelname\_datetime.psmodel the model as it was the last time it was opened/saved
- Modelname\_datetime.mac a macro of the commands run since the last time the model was opened/saved
- Modelname\_datetime.log the File Doctor log

These files are stored in the *Temp* folder. All three files should be sent to your local Support Department for analysis. You can restore a copy of your model that pre-dates the **File Doctor** fixes from the *Modelname\_datetime.psmodel* file. The fixed file is resaved as *modelname.psmodel*.

To enable this backup facility, use one of the following methods:

- In the powershape.con file, use the setting: manual\_filedoctor\_backup
- In the login macro, use:
   File OnFileDoctor Backup On

### **Running File Doctor when using Save or Save As**

If File Doctor finds errors during a model save, three files can be automatically created:

- Modelname\_datetime.psmodel the model as it was the last time it was opened/saved
- Modelname\_datetime.mac a macro of the commands run since the last time the model was opened/saved
- Modelname\_datetime.log the File Doctor log

These files are stored in the Temp folder. This folder is usually on the same drive as the software.

If these files are created, send them to your Support department for analysis.

You can enable this backup facility using one of the following methods:

In the powershape.con file, use the setting:

Save\_backup

In the login macro, use:

File OnSave Backup On

#### Summary:

File Names	Modelname_datetime.psmodel Modelname_datetime.mac Modelname_datetime.log
Folder	Temp folder
Default action	Do not create the files
powershape.con	Save_backup
Command	File OnSave Backup On/Off

File Doctor runs by default during a Save As process. If there are errors, the model can be saved as *modelname\_unsafe.psmodel*, fixed by the File Doctor and re-saved as *modelname.psmodel*.

The unsafe model is stored in the same folder as the model. If the model appears in the shareddb, so does the unsafe model.

The following three files can be created:

- Modelname\_datetime.psmodel the model as it was the last time it was opened/saved
- Modelname\_datetime.mac a macro of the commands run since the last time the model was opened/saved
- Modelname\_datetime.log the File Doctor log

These files are stored in the Temp folder. This folder is usually on the same drive as the software.

If these files are created, send them to your Support department for analysis.

You can enable this backup facility using one of the following methods:

• In the powershape.con file, use the setting:

Saveas\_backup

• In the login macro, use:

File OnSaveAs Backup On

#### Summary:

Backup Name	Modelname_unsafe.psmodel
Backup folder	Same folder as the model
File Names	Modelname_datetime.psmodel Modelname_datetime.mac Modelname_datetime.log
Folder	Temp folder
Default action	Do not create the files
powershape.con	Saveas_backup
Command	File OnSaveAs Backup On/Off

## **Installation details**

#### The shared database

PowerShape allows a group of users to share information that is applicable to everyone in the group. For example, the index of models being created, or standards. This information is stored in a shared database area called shareddb. By default, when you install PowerShape, each user has a private shared database area and parts areas where models are stored.

The shared database is located according to the default installation paths for your Windows operating system.

By default, Windows installation wizard installs folders in the following locations:

C:\Program Files\Autodesk\PowerShapexxxxx

where xxxxx is the version number of PowerShape and C is the disk on which PowerShape is installed.

C:\Users\Public\Documents\Autodesk\shareddb

or displayed as C:\Users\Public\Public Documents\Autodesk\shareddb

C:\Users\Public\Documents\Autodesk\parts

or displayed as C:\Users\Public\Public Documents\Autodesk\parts

#### **User-specific files**

It is possible to specify the location of user-specific files such as custom toolbars and shortcuts, so the same location is used for future versions of PowerShape. These files are stored in xxxx\PowerShape where xxxx is:

- C:\Users\[username]\AppData\Roaming
- the location indicated by your **HOME** variable.



*To see C:\Users\[username]\AppData\Roaming, you must enable the display of hidden files in the folder properties.* 



To check this location, open the Command window and type *print app.paths*. The location is displayed next to Local config.

## **Trouble-shooting**

This section describes typical problems that can be encountered on a PowerShape network and the solutions to those problems.

There are three classes of symptom that indicate problems with your software:

Class	Symptom
Crashing	Returns unexpectedly to the operating system.
Hanging	Being left in the program, but unable to do anything.
Error conditions (see page 36)	Shown by error messages. These may lead to crashing or hanging.

When you start PowerShape, the powershape\_startup\_log file is added to the tmp folder. This file contains details of the checks performed when starting PowerShape. It also contains any warnings and errors. Errors or warnings are also displayed in a dialog on the screen when you start PowerShape.

#### Crashing

For PowerShape crashing, a list of symptoms, their possible causes and solutions are given in the table below:

Symptom	Possible cause	Solution
Crash when trying to start PowerShape.	Incorrect installation.	See Installation problems (see page 39)
Crashing when trying to create a new graphics window. Crashing when trying to enter a "!" to issue an operating system command within the PowerShape Command window.	Insufficient virtual memory.	See Virtual memory problems (see page 40).
Program crashes when performing an action on a particular model, but other models behave normally.	Damaged models	See Corrupt databases (see page 41).

Program crashes for no particular reason.	Software error.	If possible, capture any error messages displayed in the operating system's Command window and pass on to Software Support. See Software errors
		(see page 40).

### Hanging

If PowerShape hangs, use the following list of symptoms, their possible causes to identify a solution to the problem:

Symptom	Possible cause	Solution
Hangs on start up.	Incorrect dates in: C:\Program Files\Autodesk\PowerShapex xxxx \sys\hci where xxxxx is the version number of the software.	While access rights are not the cause of the problem, the solution involves changing them. See Operating system access rights (see page 44).
	Incorrect installation.	See Installation problems (see page 39).
	Insufficient virtual memory.	See Virtual memory problems (see page 40).
Hangs when trying to create a new graphics window. Hangs when trying to enter a "!" to issue an operating system command within the Command window.	Insufficient virtual memory.	See Virtual memory problems (see page 40).

Hangs, usually with a message in the terminal window about semaphore files.	Locked shared database tables.	See Locked shared database tables. (see page 42)
Hangs when trying to create or save a model and you do not get an error message.	Possible causes are insufficient disk space or a problem with the network.	See Network breakdowns (see page 44).
Hangs when performing an action on a particular model, but other models behave normally.	The model is damaged.	See Corrupt databases (see page 41).
Hangs for no particular reason.	Software error (see page 40).	If possible, capture any error messages displayed in the operating system Command window and send to Software Support.

## **Model recovery**

If your PowerShape session crashes, it may be possible to recover the model you were working on. When you restart PowerShape after a crash, the following dialog is displayed:

Recover models	
The following models have changes that can be recovered.	
<ul> <li>Select the models you wish to recover.</li> </ul>	
<ul> <li>If models aren't selected the option to recover will be lost.</li> </ul>	
2012-assembly-comp-defn-properties electrode-for-manual	
Select All Invert	

- 1 Select the models that you wish to recover. You can use **Select All** and **Invert** to select multiple models.
- 2 Click one of the following:
  - **OK** to recover all selected models in the list.
  - Cancel to cancel the recovery process. All recoverable changes are lost.
- 3 Following a recovery, you must save the model must to allow recovery from a second crash.

If your model contains no post-version 8 solid data (Parasolid), the models are recovered to the command before the crash.

If your model contains post-version 8 solid data (Parasolid), models can only be recovered to the state when the last autosave occurred.



The time between autosaves is specified using the **Time between autosaves** option on the **Model** page of the **Options** dialog.

## **Error conditions**

When PowerShape encounters an error, it displays an error message in a dialog or in the Command window. The PowerShape message may be followed by a message in the operating system window, for example:

invalid argument to routine

**IDTUP = 8764864** 

<....DBFAVA

<...DBGACH

-CLPRIN<out>

This section lists the error messages that may be displayed and indicates possible causes:

#### Error message:

Another user is working on this model, please try later

Possible cause	Solution
Sometimes lock files can be left in place in a model folder causing this message to appear even when no other person is using the model.	See Locked model database tables (see page 42).

#### Error message:

```
Assertion : <error>
... at line <number> of <file>
Attempt to change an implicit attribute
Attempt to get/put off end of an array
Attempt to get/put wrong type of attribute
```

Invalid or unset list problem

Possible cause	Solution
If the error occurs repeatedly when performing an action on a particular model, but other models behave normally, this may indicate the model is corrupted.	See Corrupt databases (see page 41). Also remember that corrupted models can also corrupt the program held in memory, so if the program does not crash you should exit and restart the program. Save your changes first (but to a new file).

Software error.	See Software errors (see page
	40).

#### Error message:

Unable to open database file	
Possible cause	Solution
Missing files or folders.	See Missing files or folders (see page 43).
Insufficient disk space.	See Insufficient disk space (see page 43).
Overly restrictive operating system access rights.	See Operating system access rights (see page 44).

#### Error message:

Unrecognised database format

Out of date database format - update first

The database is corrupt

Possible cause	Solution
One or more damaged database files.	See Corrupt databases (see page 41).

#### Error message:

Unable to open virtual memory page file

Possible cause	Solution
Operating system access rights may be preventing writes or deletes in the temporary or current folder.	See Operating system access rights (see page 44).

#### Error message:

Attempt to read/write an invalid block number

Possible cause	Solution
One or more database tables are corrupted. This could have happened some time ago or just before the message was raised.	See Corrupt databases (see page 41).

#### Error message:

Attempt to update in read mode ignored

Cannot find table ...

Unknown table of type ...

Possible cause	Solution
These indicate that there is probably a serious program error.	See Software errors (see page 40).

#### Error message:

Database table is open for read by another user - please wait

Database table is open for write by another user - please wait

These messages may repeat.

Possible cause	Solution
Some shared database tables are locked.	See Locked shared database tables (see page 42).
Overly restrictive operating system access rights in the shared database area.	See Operating system access rights (see page 44).
Insufficient disk space in the shared database area.	See Insufficient disk space (see page 43).

#### Error message:

Unable to create part database file

Unable to create model database file

Unable to create drawing database file

Possible cause	Solution
A network problem.	See Network breakdowns (see page 44).
Overly restrictive operating system access rights in the model database area.	See Operating system access rights.
Insufficient disk space in the shared database area.	See Insufficient disk space (see page 43).

#### Error message:

Cannot find the details file

Unable to find database files

Possible cause	Solution
There is a network problem.	See Network breakdowns (see page 44).
The required files or folders are missing.	See Missing files or folders (see page 43).
Overly restrictive operating system access rights in the model database area.	See Operating system access rights.
Insufficient disk space in the model database area.	See Insufficient disk space (see page 43).

#### Error message:

Unable to open file <filename> Unable to open part database file Unable to open model database file Unable to open drawing database file

Possible cause	Solution
A network problem.	See Network breakdowns (see page 44).
The required files or folders are missing.	See Missing files or folders (see page 43).
Overly restrictive operating system access rights in the model database area.	See Operating system access rights.

## Solving typical problems

### Installation problems

Installation problems may happen if you the copy the software files manually, rather than using the installation program.

The installation program completes additional processes, such as setting up registry entries, and should always be used in preference to manual copying of files. To fix installation problems:

- 1 Uninstall the software
- 2 Re-install it using the installation procedure provided with your downloaded files.

### Virtual memory problem

Windows keeps a copy of every running program and space for its data, in a temporary file. Windows uses this file to swap information in and out of your computer's physical memory. This temporary file is referred to as virtual memory.

Windows normally manages your virtual memory files automatically, but needs to use disk space to do this. Your virtual memory is limited to the amount of physical disk space available on the computer's local disk. Ensure that at least 500 MB of free disk space is available before starting the program.

Windows can split virtual memory so that one running program image is stored on one disk, and another program is stored on a second disk. However, if a program starts on one disk and needs to expand in size, it must stay on the same disk. Thus you can find situations where virtual memory is exceeded (on one disk) while space is still available on another disk.

If have problems cause be insufficient virtual memory, check how you computer's virtual memory is configured (see Microsoft's documentation) and check for availability of disk space on all disks.

#### **Software errors**

Software errors are caused by faults in the PowerShape program code. Autodesk is careful to only release reliable software. However, problems caused by code errors are inevitable.

Do not ignore program errors. In many cases, PowerShape can appear to continues as normal, but the program could be damaged and cause corruption to your model. If you encounter a program error, we recommend that you log out immediately without saving your model.

If the program hangs, and you are unable to exit normally:

- 1 Press the **Ctrl+Shift+Esc** keys to display the **Task Manager** window.
- 2 Click the **Applications** tab.
- 3 Select **PowerShape** in the list of tasks.
- 4 Click End Task.

When you restart PowerShape, you run an undamaged copy of the software. If you have not saved the model since the problem began, the stored model is undamaged, but you must repeat any unsaved work.

If you suspect a model is damaged:

- 1 Open the model in PowerShape
- 2 Use the File Doctor to check and, if necessary, repair your model.

If logging out without saving could result in the loss of work, select File > Save As, save the model under a new name, and then run File Doctor on the updated model.

If File Doctor corrects any faults or finds no faults, you can continue working. In these situations, we recommend you regularly save your model under a new name. If any model is corrupt, you can return to a previously saved instance.

You should report all program errors to Technical Support. They are often able to show you how to achieve the same results by a different route.

When reporting errors, supplying the following information will help identify the cause of the error:

- The error messages that appeared on your screen. Messages of the form Assertion: <message> in <file> line <line number> pin-point the problem.
- The models you were using and a sequence of commands (macro) that duplicates the problem. The more information you send, the more likely it is that we can find and fix the problem.
- The *.dmp* files created in the *temp* folder if PowerShape crashes are named using the following format:

*PowerShapeXXXXx64\_yyyymmdd-hhmmss.dmp* 

### **Corrupt databases**

This problem can be caused by a program error, a lack of disk space when modifying the database, or when manually copying folders.

The **File Doctor** can detect and repair most types of corruption in the model and the shared database files, but can result in a significant loss of data. In such cases, you may need to restore the model or shared database from backups (see page 27).

ò

### Locked shared database tables

Lock files (called semaphores) are written and removed when users access the database. The purpose is to prevent more than one user from accessing the same files at the same time. Sometimes however, lock files can be left in the database or locked unnecessarily by the operating system.

To clear locks:

- 1 Ask all users to log out of PowerShape.
- **2** Type the following in the operating system's Command window:

#### check\_dblocks -delete

This deletes unwanted semaphore files and operating system locks in the shared database areas.

It is always a good idea to investigate why the locks are still in place. It may be that a user has crashed out of PowerShape or someone has found a program error. If either is true you should investigate further. For further details, see Software errors (see page 40).

### Locked model database tables

This problem can be caused by an unwanted lock file in a model folder or that another user is unnecessarily locking the model.

To clear locks:

- 1 Ask all users to log out of PowerShape.
- **2** Type the following in the operating system Command window:

check\_dblocks -models -delete

This method can take a long time because it unlocks all files and folders in the model database areas.

If you are an experienced user of the operating system, us the following method:

1 Enter the following command in the PowerShape Command window:

#### admin state dbarea

This displays the pathname of the model or drawing folder in which the problem occurred.

- 2 Check that no users have this model open.
- 3 Delete the lock file as follows:
  - a Use Windows Explorer to find the locked folder.
  - **b** Select the lock file and press the **Delete** key.

As with all problems, it is always a good idea to investigate why the locks are still in place. It may be that a user has crashed out of PowerShape or perhaps someone has found a program error. If either is true, you should investigate further. For further details, see Software errors (see page 40).

### **Missing files or folders**

The most likely problem is that files from a particular model are missing. In which case, restore from your storage device.

There are several reasons why files or folders may not be present:

- The files or folders may have been removed manually. You should actively discourage users from working in folders containing database files in case they accidentally delete the files. Only expert support staff should deliberately delete files in the database folders.
- A relative pathname was used when creating a new database area. This means that the folder can be accessed from where it was created, but from nowhere else. Always use the full pathname, for example, \\ws1\disk\models\
- A database area may have been created, but the corresponding folder might not have been created or it was subsequently removed.
- Files might be missing if at any stage PowerShape had issued a message that it was unable to create them. This could be due to access rights, insufficient disk space or due to other missing folders (as explained above).

### **Insufficient disk space**

As you create new models, you will inevitably fill up your data storage disks. However, on a network installation, you will find that some disks fill up more quickly than others. If you have errors caused by lack of space, check all the disks on the network and attempt to find which has caused the problem. Bear in mind that files are created in the following areas:

- the model and drawing database areas
- the shared database area
- the temporary and current folders

The following are possible solutions:

- Delete temporary files. These start with the characters 'w\_'. Make sure all PowerShape users exit the program first.
- Archive some of the models.

- Create some new database areas to redistribute the available space.
- Add additional storage hardware to your network and create some new database areas.

### **Network breakdowns**

Network breakdowns are usually caused by:

- disconnected cables
- failure of the network server program
- crashing of the network server program
- crashing of a connected workstation

Open the Windows Explorer and select each workstation. A warning is raised for those that cannot be reached. If you cannot see all the workstations, assign another drive to the missing ones. If the drive cannot be assigned, check the network cables are connected properly to that workstation. If this does not correct the fault, reboot the workstation and try again. If the fault persists, contact Technical Support.

### **Operating system access rights**

It is normal to have different access rights in the various parts of a system. The table below shows the normal access rights for PowerShape:

Files/folders	Access rights
The contents of C:\Program Files\Autodesk\config	read and execute rights.
The contents of C:Program Files\Autodesk\PowerShapexxxxx\sys\exec64	read and execute rights.
The contents of all database areas and the temporary (or current) folders.	read, write and execute rights.
All folders in the product tree.	read-only access rights.

A shared database table consists of three files:

- table.db
- table.sh
- table.pf

If a table is correctly accessed, the file dates show the .db file as the most recently accessed, followed by the .pf file, followed by the .sh file.

Dates and times in a different order indicate a problem and PowerShape attempts to regenerate the files to correct the fault. To do this, PowerShape needs read and write access to all three files, otherwise it will hang when you start it.

The files in the shared database area should already have suitable access, but database tables also exist in the PowerShape product tree, which normally has read-only access rights. The files are in:

#### C:\Program Files\Autodesk\PowerShapexxxx\sys\hci

where  $\mathbf{x}\mathbf{x}\mathbf{x}\mathbf{x}$  is the version number, and all the sub-folders below this.

If you have a problem with the program hanging on start-up, provide **read**, **write** and **execute** rights to all files below:

#### C:\Program Files\Autodesk\PowerShapexxxx\sys\hci

The next time PowerShape starts, it will correct the files and the hanging problem should correct itself. You should then return the access rights to read-only.

This problem results from an incorrect installation, or from subsequent 'tampering' with the installed files. Always use the installation procedure provided.

## Commands

This section contains the commands and scripts to manage your PowerShape system. Commands are entered in the Command window.

To use the Command window:

- 1 Double-click the Command box in the status bar to open the Command window.
- **2** Type the commands in the Command window.

Commands can be used to control access rights (see page 46), model database areas (see page 49) and manage users (see page 50).

## Access rights commands

Sites that have several departments using PowerShape and sharing the same database, or sites where models are confidential, can create access restrictions to prevent unauthorized access or deletion of models. This task is the responsibility of the System Administrator, and is done using the **Create Access** and **Delete Access** commands.

It may also be useful to restrict access when a model is complete, so that it cannot be accidentally deleted. Similarly, models can be protected from write access when they are approved, to ensure the model can only be revised by altering a copy of the original.

#### **Create Access**

This command creates an access restriction for users matching user\_name\_pattern accessing models matching model\_name\_pattern.

In the Command window, type:

ADMIN CREATE ACCESS 'model\_name\_pattern' 'user\_name\_pattern'

and then type in the access rights. Choose from:

- CREATE
- **DELETE**
- READ
- WRITE

You can specify these access rights in any order.

If no access is required, type:

#### NONE

For further details on patterns, see Search patterns (see page 23)

When PowerShape is first installed, all users have full access to all models.

To give users only limited access to models, first prevent all users from accessing any model by typing:

#### ADMIN CREATE ACCESS '\*' '\*' NONE

The rights to access specific groups of models can be given to specific groups of users, for example

#### ADMIN CREATE ACCESS 'SS' '\*.SS' CREATE READ WRITE

When a user-model access check matches more than one pattern, the access rights are determined by the most closely matching pattern. For example, the highest number of exact character matches and ? wildcard matches in model\_name\_pattern and user\_name\_pattern.

#### **Delete Access**

This command deletes an access restriction created by the **CREATE ACCESS** command.

In the PowerShape Command window, type:

#### ADMIN DELETE ACCESS 'model\_name\_pattern' 'user\_name\_pattern'

The exact model\_name\_pattern and user\_name\_pattern used to create the access restriction must be given to delete it. If the patterns are not given on the same line as **Delete Access**, you are prompted for them in turn.

For further details on patterns, see Search patterns (see page 23)

An example of a complete Create - Delete Access sequence:

... > ADMIN CREATE ACCESS

Pattern matching models to be protected > 'me\*'

Pattern matching users to be allowed access > 'ano\*'

Access rights (CREATE/DELETE/READ/WRITE) > CREATE DELETE

•••

... OTHER COMMANDS

•••

... > ADMIN DELETE ACCESS

Model name pattern (as per STATE ACCESS) > 'me\*' User name pattern (as per STATE ACCESS) > 'ano\*'

#### **State Access**

This command displays access rights in general or for specific models.

In the Command window, type:

#### ADMIN STATE ACCESS ALL

to display the access rights for all the models. This is the same as typing:

#### **ADMIN STATE ACCESS**

To display the access rights of those model names that match a pattern, type:

ADMIN STATE ACCESS 'model\_name\_pattern'

For further details on patterns, see Search patterns (see page 23)

State Access outputs the restrictions:

- set up by Create Access
- on the models specified in the command

For example, typing:

ADMIN STATE ACCESS 'fig\*'

produces an output similar to:

**Access restrictions** 

Model patterns Users Create Delete Read Write

FIG\* \* Yes No Yes No

SYM\* RPG Yes No Yes Yes

#### **Model names Delete Read Write**

Fig1 No Yes No

Fig2 No Yes No

In this example, any user creating a model called FIG followed by any other characters gives that model read-only access. If user RPG creates a model SYM23, it cannot be deleted.

## Model database areas commands

For details on model database areas, select from the following:

#### **Print Model**

This prints detailed information about the named model model\_name.

In the Command window, type:

#### ADMIN PRINT MODEL model\_name password

Any password given to the model when it was created must be given after the model name.

This prints the name of the model, any description, password, and standard given when the model was created. Also included are the model's minimum and maximum size, and if it is archived.

The format of the displayed table is:

#### Model details

\_\_\_\_\_

Name Description Std Min corner Max corner Archived Password

TB1 Test Piece BSI -10 -10 -10 10 10 10 No none

#### **State Model**

This displays information about one, some, or all models.

In the Command window, type:

#### **ADMIN STATE MODEL ALL**

to print information about all models. This is the same as typing:

#### **ADMIN STATE MODEL**

To display the information of models matching a pattern, type:

#### ADMIN STATE MODEL 'model\_name\_pattern'

A list of the models in the database is displayed, together with any description given when the model was created, and whether the model has been archived.

The information is output in a table format as shown below:-

#### Model details

\_\_\_\_\_

NameDescriptionArchivedAutoPartA description of auto partNo

ARL		Yes		
DEMO	)2	Zylinderkopf		No
•••	•••		•••	
•••	•••		•••	
•••	•••		•••	

For further details on patterns, see Search patterns (see page 23).

## **Users commands**

PowerShape maintains a list of users who are allowed to login to it. The System Administrator may update this list and allocate a security rating to each user to control access to data. Each user may have an individual password.

When PowerShape starts, it checks the name of the user currently logged into the host computer. If this user name is not known, PowerShape asks for a login name. The System Administrator can create a new user at this point.

Security ratings are used to control access to model information and to other user's account information. For example, **Print User** and **State User** print the passwords of users who have lower security ratings than the person who is logged in.

#### **Create User**

This creates a user in the PowerShape user database.

In PowerShape's Command window, type:

ADMIN CREATE USER user\_name password full\_name security\_rating config\_file\_name

If no password, or config file, is required, type NONE.

Only a security rating equal to, or lower, than the current users is accepted.

#### **Delete User**

This deletes the user user\_name from the list of users allowed to use PowerShape.

In the PowerShape Command window, type:

#### ADMIN DELETE USER user\_name password

If a password is specified for the use, you must enter it.

#### **Edit User**

This edits the user's password. In PowerShape's Command window, type: ADMIN EDIT USER user\_name PASSWORD new\_password

#### Print User

This prints details about a user.

In the Command window, type:

#### ADMIN PRINT USER user\_name password

To print the details of the user who is currently logged in, enter *ME* as the *user\_name*.

#### State User

This prints the user database in table format.

In the Command window, type:

#### **ADMIN STATE USER**

An example of the print out is given below.

**User details** 

Login name Password Full name Security level

**RPG** Razia Ghani Sys. Admin

KBH ninka Karen Heesom Draughtsperson

Passwords are only printed when the user is a System Administrator.

# **Autodesk Legal Notice**

© 2023 Autodesk, Inc. All Rights Reserved. Except where otherwise noted, this work is licensed under a Creative Commons Attribution-NonCommercial-ShareAlike 3.0 Unported License that can be viewed online at http://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-ncsa/3.0/. This license content, applicable as of 16 December 2014 to this software product, is reproduced here for offline users:

CREATIVE COMMONS CORPORATION IS NOT A LAW FIRM AND DOES NOT PROVIDE LEGAL SERVICES. DISTRIBUTION OF THIS LICENSE DOES NOT CREATE AN ATTORNEY-CLIENT RELATIONSHIP. CREATIVE COMMONS PROVIDES THIS INFORMATION ON AN "AS-IS" BASIS. CREATIVE COMMONS MAKES NO WARRANTIES REGARDING THE INFORMATION PROVIDED, AND DISCLAIMS LIABILITY FOR DAMAGES RESULTING FROM ITS USE.

#### License

THE WORK (AS DEFINED BELOW) IS PROVIDED UNDER THE TERMS OF THIS CREATIVE COMMONS PUBLIC LICENSE ("CCPL" OR "LICENSE"). THE WORK IS PROTECTED BY COPYRIGHT AND/OR OTHER APPLICABLE LAW. ANY USE OF THE WORK OTHER THAN AS AUTHORIZED UNDER THIS LICENSE OR COPYRIGHT LAW IS PROHIBITED.

BY EXERCISING ANY RIGHTS TO THE WORK PROVIDED HERE, YOU ACCEPT AND AGREE TO BE BOUND BY THE TERMS OF THIS LICENSE. TO THE EXTENT THIS LICENSE MAY BE CONSIDERED TO BE A CONTRACT, THE LICENSOR GRANTS YOU THE RIGHTS CONTAINED HERE IN CONSIDERATION OF YOUR ACCEPTANCE OF SUCH TERMS AND CONDITIONS.

#### 1. Definitions

a. "Adaptation" means a work based upon the Work, or upon the Work and other pre-existing works, such as a translation, adaptation, derivative work, arrangement of music or other alterations of a literary or artistic work, or phonogram or performance and includes cinematographic adaptations or any other form in which the Work may be recast, transformed, or adapted including in any form recognizably derived from the original, except that a work that constitutes a Collection will not be considered an Adaptation for the purpose of this License. For the avoidance of doubt, where the Work is a musical work, performance or phonogram, the synchronization of the Work in timed-relation with a moving image ("synching") will be considered an Adaptation for the purpose of this License.

b. "Collection" means a collection of literary or artistic works, such as encyclopedias and anthologies, or performances, phonograms or broadcasts, or other works or subject matter other than works listed in Section 1(g) below, which, by reason of the selection and arrangement of their contents, constitute intellectual creations, in which the Work is included in its entirety in unmodified form along with one or more other contributions, each constituting separate and independent works in themselves, which together are assembled into a collective whole. A work that constitutes a Collection will not be considered an Adaptation (as defined above) for the purposes of this License.

c. "**Distribute**" means to make available to the public the original and copies of the Work or Adaptation, as appropriate, through sale or other transfer of ownership.

d. "License Elements" means the following high-level license attributes as selected by Licensor and indicated in the title of this License: Attribution, Noncommercial, ShareAlike.

e. "Licensor" means the individual, individuals, entity or entities that offer(s) the Work under the terms of this License.

f. "Original Author" means, in the case of a literary or artistic work, the individual, individuals, entity or entities who created the Work or if no individual or entity can be identified, the publisher; and in addition (i) in the case of a performance the actors, singers, musicians, dancers, and other persons who act, sing, deliver, declaim, play in, interpret or otherwise perform literary or artistic works or expressions of folklore; (ii) in the case of a phonogram the producer being the person or legal entity who first fixes the sounds of a performance or other sounds; and, (iii) in the case of broadcasts, the organization that transmits the broadcast. q. "Work" means the literary and/or artistic work offered under the terms of this License including without limitation any production in the literary, scientific and artistic domain, whatever may be the mode or form of its expression including digital form, such as a book, pamphlet and other writing; a lecture, address, sermon or other work of the same nature; a dramatic or dramatico-musical work; a choreographic work or entertainment in dumb show; a musical composition with or without words; a cinematographic work to which are assimilated works expressed by a process analogous to cinematography; a work of drawing, painting, architecture, sculpture, engraving or lithography; a photographic work to which are assimilated works expressed by a process analogous to photography; a work of applied art; an illustration, map, plan, sketch or three-dimensional work relative to geography, topography, architecture or science; a performance; a broadcast; a phonogram; a compilation of data to the extent it is protected as a copyrightable work; or a work performed by a variety or circus performer to the extent it is not otherwise considered a literary or artistic work.

h. "You" means an individual or entity exercising rights under this License who has not previously violated the terms of this License with respect to the Work, or who has received express permission from the Licensor to exercise rights under this License despite a previous violation.

i. "Publicly Perform" means to perform public recitations of the Work and to communicate to the public those public recitations, by any means or process, including by wire or wireless means or public digital performances; to make available to the public Works in such a way that members of the public may access these Works from a place and at a place individually chosen by them; to perform the Work to the public by any means or process and the communication to the public of the performances of the Work, including by public digital performance; to broadcast and rebroadcast the Work by any means including signs, sounds or images.

j. "**Reproduce**" means to make copies of the Work by any means including without limitation by sound or visual recordings and the right of fixation and reproducing fixations of the Work, including storage of a protected performance or phonogram in digital form or other electronic medium.

**2. Fair Dealing Rights.** Nothing in this License is intended to reduce, limit, or restrict any uses free from copyright or rights arising from limitations or exceptions that are provided for in connection with the copyright protection under copyright law or other applicable laws.

**3. License Grant.** Subject to the terms and conditions of this License, Licensor hereby grants You a worldwide, royalty-free, non-exclusive, perpetual (for the duration of the applicable copyright) license to exercise the rights in the Work as stated below:

a. to Reproduce the Work, to incorporate the Work into one or more Collections, and to Reproduce the Work as incorporated in the Collections;

b. to create and Reproduce Adaptations provided that any such Adaptation, including any translation in any medium, takes reasonable steps to clearly label, demarcate or otherwise identify that changes were made to the original Work. For example, a translation could be marked "The original work was translated from English to Spanish," or a modification could indicate "The original work has been modified.";

c. to Distribute and Publicly Perform the Work including as incorporated in Collections; and,

d. to Distribute and Publicly Perform Adaptations.

The above rights may be exercised in all media and formats whether now known or hereafter devised. The above rights include the right to make such modifications as are technically necessary to exercise the rights in other media and formats. Subject to Section 8(f), all rights not expressly granted by Licensor are hereby reserved, including but not limited to the rights described in Section 4(e).

**4. Restrictions.** The license granted in Section 3 above is expressly made subject to and limited by the following restrictions:

a. You may Distribute or Publicly Perform the Work only under the terms of this License. You must include a copy of, or the Uniform Resource Identifier (URI) for, this License with every copy of the Work You Distribute or Publicly Perform. You may not offer or impose any terms on the Work that restrict the terms of this License or the ability of the recipient of the Work to exercise the rights granted to that recipient under the terms of the License. You may not sublicense the Work. You must keep intact all notices that refer to this License and to the disclaimer of warranties with every copy of the Work You Distribute or Publicly Perform. When You Distribute or Publicly Perform the Work, You may not impose any effective technological measures on the Work that restrict the ability of a recipient of the Work from You to exercise the rights granted to that recipient under the terms of the License. This Section 4(a) applies to the Work as incorporated in a Collection, but this does not require the Collection apart from the Work itself to be made subject to the terms of this License. If You create a Collection, upon notice from any Licensor You must, to the extent practicable, remove from the Collection any credit as required by Section 4(d), as requested. If You create an Adaptation, upon notice from any Licensor You must, to the extent practicable, remove from the Adaptation any credit as required by Section 4(d), as requested.

b. You may Distribute or Publicly Perform an Adaptation only under: (i) the terms of this License; (ii) a later version of this License with the same License Elements as this License; (iii) a Creative Commons jurisdiction license (either this or a later license version) that contains the same License Elements as this License (e.g., Attribution-NonCommercial-ShareAlike 3.0 US) ("Applicable License"). You must include a copy of, or the URI, for Applicable License with every copy of each Adaptation You Distribute or Publicly Perform. You may not offer or impose any terms on the Adaptation that restrict the terms of the Applicable License or the ability of the recipient of the Adaptation to exercise the rights granted to that recipient under the terms of the Applicable License. You must keep intact all notices that refer to the Applicable License and to the disclaimer of warranties with every copy of the Work as included in the Adaptation You Distribute or Publicly Perform. When You Distribute or Publicly Perform the Adaptation, You may not impose any effective technological measures on the Adaptation that restrict the ability of a recipient of the Adaptation from You to exercise the rights granted to that recipient under the terms of the Applicable License. This Section 4(b) applies to the Adaptation as incorporated in a Collection, but this does not require the Collection apart from the Adaptation itself to be made subject to the terms of the Applicable License.

c. You may not exercise any of the rights granted to You in Section 3 above in any manner that is primarily intended for or directed toward commercial advantage or private monetary compensation. The exchange of the Work for other copyrighted works by means of digital file-sharing or otherwise shall not be considered to be intended for or directed toward commercial advantage or private monetary compensation, provided there is no payment of any monetary compensation in connection with the exchange of copyrighted works.

d. If You Distribute, or Publicly Perform the Work or any Adaptations or Collections, You must, unless a request has been made pursuant to Section 4(a), keep intact all copyright notices for the Work and provide, reasonable to the medium or means You are utilizing: (i) the name of the Original Author (or pseudonym, if applicable) if supplied, and/or if the Original Author and/or Licensor designate another party or parties (e.g., a sponsor institute, publishing entity, journal) for attribution ("Attribution Parties") in Licensor's copyright notice, terms of service or by other reasonable means, the name of such party or parties; (ii) the title of the Work if supplied; (iii) to the extent reasonably practicable, the URI, if any, that Licensor specifies to be associated with the Work, unless such URI does not refer to the copyright notice or licensing information for the Work; and, (iv) consistent with Section 3(b), in the case of an Adaptation, a credit identifying the use of the Work in the Adaptation (e.g., "French translation of the Work by Original Author," or "Screenplay based on original Work by Original Author"). The credit required by this Section 4(d) may be implemented in any reasonable manner; provided, however, that in the case of a Adaptation or Collection, at a minimum such credit will appear, if a credit for all contributing authors of the Adaptation or Collection appears, then as part of these credits and in a manner at least as prominent as the credits for the other contributing authors. For the avoidance of doubt, You may only use the credit required by this Section for the purpose of attribution in the manner set out above and, by exercising Your rights under this License, You may not implicitly or explicitly assert or imply any connection with, sponsorship or endorsement by the Original Author, Licensor and/or Attribution Parties, as appropriate, of You or Your use of the Work, without the separate, express prior written permission of the Original Author, Licensor and/or Attribution Parties.

e. For the avoidance of doubt:

i. Non-waivable Compulsory License Schemes. In those jurisdictions in which the right to collect royalties through any statutory or compulsory licensing scheme cannot be waived, the Licensor reserves the exclusive right to collect such royalties for any exercise by You of the rights granted under this License;

ii. Waivable Compulsory License Schemes. In those jurisdictions in which the right to collect royalties through any statutory or compulsory licensing scheme can be waived, the Licensor reserves the exclusive right to collect such royalties for any exercise by You of the rights granted under this License if Your exercise of such rights is for a purpose or use which is otherwise than noncommercial as permitted under Section 4(c) and otherwise waives the right to collect royalties through any statutory or compulsory licensing scheme; and,

iii. Voluntary License Schemes. The Licensor reserves the right to collect royalties, whether individually or, in the event that the Licensor is a member of a collecting society that administers voluntary licensing schemes, via that society, from any exercise by You of the rights granted under this License that is for a purpose or use which is otherwise than noncommercial as permitted under Section 4(c).

f. Except as otherwise agreed in writing by the Licensor or as may be otherwise permitted by applicable law, if You Reproduce, Distribute or Publicly Perform the Work either by itself or as part of any Adaptations or Collections, You must not distort, mutilate, modify or take other derogatory action in relation to the Work which would be prejudicial to the Original Author's honor or reputation. Licensor agrees that in those jurisdictions (e.g. Japan), in which any exercise of the right granted in Section 3(b) of this License (the right to make Adaptations) would be deemed to be a distortion, mutilation, modification or other derogatory action prejudicial to the Original Author's honor and reputation, the Licensor will waive or not assert, as appropriate, this Section, to the fullest extent permitted by the applicable national law, to enable You to reasonably exercise Your right under Section 3(b) of this License (right to make Adaptations) but not otherwise.

#### 5. Representations, Warranties and Disclaimer

UNLESS OTHERWISE MUTUALLY AGREED TO BY THE PARTIES IN WRITING AND TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, LICENSOR OFFERS THE WORK AS-IS AND MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND CONCERNING THE WORK, EXPRESS, IMPLIED, STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, WARRANTIES OF TITLE, MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, NONINFRINGEMENT, OR THE ABSENCE OF LATENT OR OTHER DEFECTS, ACCURACY, OR THE PRESENCE OF ABSENCE OF ERRORS, WHETHER OR NOT DISCOVERABLE. SOME JURISDICTIONS DO NOT ALLOW THE EXCLUSION OF IMPLIED WARRANTIES, SO THIS EXCLUSION MAY NOT APPLY TO YOU.

6. Limitation on Liability. EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT REQUIRED BY APPLICABLE LAW, IN NO EVENT WILL LICENSOR BE LIABLE TO YOU ON ANY LEGAL THEORY FOR ANY SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, PUNITIVE OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF THIS LICENSE OR THE USE OF THE WORK, EVEN IF LICENSOR HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES.

#### 7. Termination

a. This License and the rights granted hereunder will terminate automatically upon any breach by You of the terms of this License. Individuals or entities who have received Adaptations or Collections from You under this License, however, will not have their licenses terminated provided such individuals or entities remain in full compliance with those licenses. Sections 1, 2, 5, 6, 7, and 8 will survive any termination of this License.

b. Subject to the above terms and conditions, the license granted here is perpetual (for the duration of the applicable copyright in the Work). Notwithstanding the above, Licensor reserves the right to release the Work under different license terms or to stop distributing the Work at any time; provided, however that any such election will not serve to withdraw this License (or any other license that has been, or is required to be, granted under the terms of this License), and this License will continue in full force and effect unless terminated as stated above.

#### 8. Miscellaneous

a. Each time You Distribute or Publicly Perform the Work or a Collection, the Licensor offers to the recipient a license to the Work on the same terms and conditions as the license granted to You under this License.

b. Each time You Distribute or Publicly Perform an Adaptation, Licensor offers to the recipient a license to the original Work on the same terms and conditions as the license granted to You under this License.

c. If any provision of this License is invalid or unenforceable under applicable law, it shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remainder of the terms of this License, and without further action by the parties to this agreement, such provision shall be reformed to the minimum extent necessary to make such provision valid and enforceable.

d. No term or provision of this License shall be deemed waived and no breach consented to unless such waiver or consent shall be in writing and signed by the party to be charged with such waiver or consent.

e. This License constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the Work licensed here. There are no understandings, agreements or representations with respect to the Work not specified here. Licensor shall not be bound by any additional provisions that may appear in any communication from You. This License may not be modified without the mutual written agreement of the Licensor and You.

f. The rights granted under, and the subject matter referenced, in this License were drafted utilizing the terminology of the Berne Convention for the Protection of Literary and Artistic Works (as amended on September 28, 1979), the Rome Convention of 1961, the WIPO Copyright Treaty of 1996, the WIPO Performances and Phonograms Treaty of 1996 and the Universal Copyright Convention (as revised on July 24, 1971). These rights and subject matter take effect in the relevant jurisdiction in which the License terms are sought to be enforced according to the corresponding provisions of the implementation of those treaty provisions in the applicable national law. If the standard suite of rights granted under applicable copyright law includes additional rights not granted under this License, such additional rights are deemed to be included in the License; this License is not intended to restrict the license of any rights under applicable law.

#### **Creative Commons Notice**

Creative Commons is not a party to this License, and makes no warranty whatsoever in connection with the Work. Creative Commons will not be liable to You or any party on any legal theory for any damages whatsoever, including without limitation any general, special, incidental or consequential damages arising in connection to this license. Notwithstanding the foregoing two (2) sentences, if Creative Commons has expressly identified itself as the Licensor hereunder, it shall have all rights and obligations of Licensor.

Except for the limited purpose of indicating to the public that the Work is licensed under the CCPL, Creative Commons does not authorize the use by either party of the trademark "Creative Commons" or any related trademark or logo of Creative Commons without the prior written consent of Creative Commons. Any permitted use will be in compliance with Creative Commons' thencurrent trademark usage guidelines, as may be published on its website or otherwise made available upon request from time to time. For the avoidance of doubt, this trademark restriction does not form part of this License.

Creative Commons may be contacted at https://creativecommons.org/.

Certain materials included in this publication are reprinted with the permission of the copyright holder.

#### **Creative Commons FAQ**

Autodesk's Creative Commons FAQ can be viewed online at https://knowledge.autodesk.com/customer-service/share-the-knowledge, and is reproduced here for offline users.

Creative Commons is a simple, open licensing model which allows individuals to freely modify, remix, and share digital content created for learning and support.

Borrow from the Autodesk Learning, Support and Video libraries to build a new learning experience for anyone with any particular need or interest. It's out there. You can use it. It's yours.

In collaboration with Creative Commons, Autodesk invites you to share your knowledge with the rest of the world, inspiring others to learn, achieve goals, and ignite creativity.

#### What is Creative Commons?

Creative Commons (CC) is a nonprofit organization that offers a simple licensing model that frees digital content to enable anyone to modify, remix, and share creative works.

## How do I know if Autodesk learning content and Autodesk University content is available under Creative Commons?

All Autodesk learning content and Autodesk University content released under Creative Commons is explicitly marked with a Creative Commons icon specifying what you can and cannot do. Always follow the terms of the stated license.

## What Autodesk learning content is currently available under Creative Commons?

Over time, Autodesk will release more and more learning content under the Creative Commons licenses.

Currently available learning content:

- Autodesk online help-Online help for many Autodesk products, including its embedded media such as images and help movies.
- Autodesk Learning Videos-A range of video-based learning content, including the video tutorials on the Autodesk YouTube™ Learning Channels and their associated iTunes® podcasts.
- Autodesk downloadable materials-Downloadable 3D assets, digital footage, and other files you can use to follow along on your own time.

#### Is Autodesk learning and support content copyrighted?

Yes. Creative Commons licensing does not replace copyright. Copyright remains with Autodesk or its suppliers, as applicable. But it makes the terms of use much more flexible.

#### What do the Autodesk Creative Commons licenses allow?

Autodesk makes some of its learning and support content available under two distinct Creative Commons licenses. The learning content is clearly marked with the applicable Creative Commons license. You must comply with the following conditions:

 Attribution-NonCommercial-ShareAlike (CC BY-NC-SA) This license lets you copy, distribute, display, remix, tweak, and build upon our work noncommercially, as long as you credit Autodesk and license your new creations under the identical terms. Terms of this license can be viewed online at https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nc-sa/3.0/us/

Attribution-NonCommercial-No Derivative Works (CC BY-NC-ND)
 This license lets you copy, distribute, and display only verbatim copies of our work as long as you credit us, but you cannot alter the learning content in any way or use it commercially. Terms of this license can be viewed online at https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nc-nd/3.0/us/deed.en US

 Special permissions on content marked as No Derivative Works For video-based learning content marked as No Derivative Works (ND), Autodesk grants you special permission to make modifications but only for the purpose of translating the video content into another language.

These conditions can be modified only by explicit permission of Autodesk, Inc. Send requests for modifications outside of these license terms to *creativecommons@autodesk.com*.

## Can I get special permission to do something different with the learning content?

Unless otherwise stated, our Creative Commons conditions can be modified only by explicit permission of Autodesk, Inc. If you have any questions or requests for modifications outside of these license terms, email us at creativecommons@autodesk.com.

#### How do I attribute Autodesk learning content?

You must explicitly credit Autodesk, Inc., as the original source of the materials. This is a standard requirement of the Attribution (BY) term in all Creative Commons licenses. In some cases, such as for the Autodesk video learning content, we specify exactly how we would like to be attributed.

This is usually described on the video's end-plate. For the most part providing the title of the work, the URL where the work is hosted, and a credit to Autodesk, Inc., is quite acceptable. Also, remember to keep intact any copyright notice associated with the work. This may sound like a lot of information, but there is flexibility in the way you present it.

Here are some examples:

"This document contains content adapted from the Autodesk® Maya® Help, available under a Creative Commons Attribution-NonCommercial-Share Alike license. Copyright © Autodesk, Inc."

"This is a Finnish translation of a video created by the Autodesk Maya Learning Channel @ www.youtube.com/mayahowtos. Copyright © Autodesk, Inc."

"Special thanks to the Autodesk® 3ds Max® Learning Channel @ www.youtube.com/3dsmaxhowtos. Copyright © Autodesk, Inc."

## Do I follow YouTube's standard license or Autodesk's Creative Commons license?

The videos of the Autodesk Learning Channels on YouTube are uploaded under YouTube's standard license policy. Nonetheless, these videos are released by Autodesk as Creative Commons Attribution-NonCommercial-No Derivative Works (CC BY-NC-ND) and are marked as such. You are free to use our video learning content according to the Creative Commons license under which they are released.

#### Where can I easily download Autodesk learning videos?

Most of the Autodesk Learning Channels have an associated iTunes podcast from where you can download the same videos and watch them offline. When translating Autodesk learning videos, we recommend downloading the videos from the iTunes podcasts.

#### Can I translate Autodesk learning videos?

Yes. Even though our learning videos are licensed as No Derivative Works (ND), we grant everyone permission to translate the audio and subtitles into other languages. In fact, if you want to recapture the video tutorial as-is but show the user interface in another language, you are free to do so. Be sure to give proper attribution as indicated on the video's Creative Commons end-plate. This special permission only applies to translation projects. Requests for modifications outside of these license terms can be directed to creativecommons@autodesk.com.

## How do I let others know that I have translated Autodesk learning content into another language?

Autodesk is happy to see its learning content translated into as many different languages as possible. If you translate our videos or any of our learning content into other languages, let us know. We can help promote your contributions to our growing multilingual community. In fact, we encourage you to find creative ways to share our learning content with your friends, family, students, colleagues, and communities around the world. Contact us at creativecommons@autodesk.com.

## I have translated Autodesk learning videos into other languages. Can I upload them to my own YouTube channel?

Yes, please do and let us know where to find them so that we can help promote your contributions to our growing multilingual Autodesk community. Contact us at creativecommons@autodesk.com.

**Can I repost or republish Autodesk learning content on my site or blog?** Yes, you can make Autodesk learning material available on your site or blog as long as you follow the terms of the Creative Commons license under which the learning content is released. If you are simply referencing the learning content as-is, then we recommend that you link to it or embed it from where it is hosted by Autodesk. That way the content will always be fresh. If you have translated or remixed our learning content, then by all means you can host it yourself. Let us know about it, and we can help promote your contributions to our global learning community. Contact us at creativecommons@autodesk.com.

#### Can I show Autodesk learning content during my conference?

Yes, as long as it's within the scope of a noncommercial event, and as long as you comply with the terms of the Creative Commons license outlined above. In particular, the videos must be shown unedited with the exception of modifications for the purpose of translation. If you wish to use Autodesk learning content in a commercial context, contact us with a request for permission at creativecommons@autodesk.com.

#### Can I use Autodesk learning content in my classroom?

Yes, as long as you comply with the terms of the Creative Commons license under which the learning material is released. Many teachers use Autodesk learning content to stimulate discussions with students or to complement course materials, and we encourage you to do so as well.

#### Can I re-edit and remix Autodesk video learning content?

No, but for one exception. Our Creative Commons BY-NC-ND license clearly states that "derivative works" of any kind (edits, cuts, remixes, mashups, and so on) are not allowed without explicit permission from Autodesk. This is essential for preserving the integrity of our instructors' ideas. However, we do give you permission to modify our videos for the purpose of translating them into other languages.

#### **Can I re-edit and remix Autodesk downloadable 3D assets and footage?** Yes. The Autodesk Learning Channels on YouTube provide downloadable 3D assets, footage, and other files for you to follow along with the video tutorials on your own time. This downloadable material is made available under a Creative Commons Attribution-NonCommercial-ShareAlike (CC BY-NC-SA) license. You can

download these materials and experiment with them, but your remixes must give us credit as the original source of the content and be shared under the identical license terms.

## Can I use content from Autodesk online help to create new materials for a specific audience?

Yes, if you want to help a specific audience learn how to optimize the use of their Autodesk software, there is no need to start from scratch. You can use, remix, or enrich the relevant help content and include it in your book, instructions, examples, or workflows you create, then Share-Alike with the community. Always be sure to comply with the terms of the Creative Commons license under which the learning content is released.

## What are the best practices for marking content with Creative Commons Licenses?

When reusing a CC-licensed work (by sharing the original or a derivative based on the original), it is important to keep intact any copyright notice associated with the work, including the Creative Commons license being used. Make sure you abide by the license conditions provided by the licensor, in this case Autodesk, Inc.

#### Trademarks

The following are registered trademarks or trademarks of Autodesk, Inc., and/or its subsidiaries and/or affiliates in the USA and other countries: 3ds Max, ADSK, Alias, ATC, AutoCAD LT, AutoCAD, Autodesk, Autodesk Construction Cloud, Autodesk Forge, Autodesk Fusion 360, BIM 360, BuildingConnected, Civil 3D, Dancing Baby, The (image) Eagle, FBX, FeatureCAM, Flame, FormIt, Forge, Forge Devcon, Forge Fund, Fusion 360, Glue, Green Building Studio, ICMLive, InfoWater, InfoWorks, InfraWorks, Innovyze, Instructables, Inventor, Make Anything, Maya, Moldflow, MotionBuilder, Mudbox, Navisworks, Netfabb, PartMaker, Plangrid, PowerInspect, PowerMill, PowerShape, Pype, RasterDWG, Redshift, RealDWG, ReCap, Revit, Shotgun, SketchBook, Spacemaker, Tinkercad, TrustedDWG, VRED.

All other brand names, product names or trademarks belong to their respective holders.

#### Disclaimer

THIS PUBLICATION AND THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS MADE AVAILABLE BY AUTODESK, INC. "AS IS." AUTODESK, INC. DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE REGARDING THESE MATERIALS.



**EXAMPLE 7** Except where otherwise noted, this work is licensed under a Creative Commons Attribution-NonCommercial-ShareAlike 3.0 Unported License. Please see the Autodesk Creative Commons FAQ for more information.